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About the Cover
As a holding company, Macay Holdings is alive
with the exuberance, confidence, and optimism
and eager to work toward growth for its
customers and stakeholders.Young since its
inception, youthful and fresh in spirit, Macay
Holdings is envisioning a bright future, rising
like bubbles from a freshly opened bottle of
soda. Macay is imbibing the spirit of success.
Its customers and stakeholders are invited to
watch it rise to the surface.

03

M AC AY H O L D I N G S , I N C .

ABOUT THE
COMPANY

Macay Holdings, Inc. (“Macay” or the “Company”) is an investment
holding company duly registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”).
The shares of the Company are listed and traded as “MACAY”
on the PSE starting 2014.
Macay is the parent company of ARC Refreshments Corporation
(“ARC”) which produces, bottles, markets and distributes a wide
range of carbonated beverages, including the popular RC Cola and
its variant RC Free as well as other soft drinks, namely: Fruit Soda
Orange, Juicy Lemon and Arcy’s Rootbeer. Over the years, Macay
has - through ARC - carved out a market for its branded carbonated
beverages. Significantly, it grew its footprint to a total of nine (9)
bottling facilities. These bottling facilities are situated in various
strategic locations throughout the country, in close proximity to
our customers and dealers.
Macay was formerly known as Maybank ATR Kim Eng Financial
Corporation (“MAKE”), The shareholders of MAKE undertook
a re-organization which resulted in the sale of all of its operating
subsidiaries. Upon completion of this re-organization, the majority
ownership of MAKE was acquired on 25 October 2013, by an
investor group led by Alfredo M.Yao, to serve as the vehicle for the
consolidation of various businesses engaged in soft drinks bottling,
distribution and sales and eventually other consumer focused
businesses to be identified in the future.
The Company and its senior management team aims to expand the
presence and market share of ARC, and enter into the manufacture,
distribution, and sale of other consumer-focused products in the
Philippines and in the Asian region.
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JOINT MESSAGE FROM THE
CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT
To Our Dear Shareholders,
We are glad to report to you that the
year ended 31 December 2014 was one
of growth and development for MACAY
HOLDINGS, INC. through its subsidiary
ARC Refreshments Corporation.
Business conditions in the areas where
we operate greatly improved, resulting
in strong overall net income growth
of Php1.73 billion as of December 31,
2014 from Php0.69 billion a year ago,
an increase of 151%. Earnings per share
jumped 153% from Php0.64 per share to
Php1.62 per share.

“We have great
confidence and excitement for
our future and look forward to the
realization of our vision of making
Macay a leading institution in the
consumer industry.”

Beginning February 2014, we took full
control of the production, bottling,
marketing and distribution of RC Cola,
RC Free, Fruit Soda Orange, Juicy Lemon
and Arcy’s Rootbeer. With this we were
able to secure top-line growth through a
combination of (a) our successful expansion
into previously “un-served” areas in
Northern Luzon, Central Visayas and
Northern Mindanao, (b) organic growth
in areas surrounding our existing plants,
(c) effective targeted and localized
advertising and promotional efforts, and
(d) price adjustments that were introduced
mid-year. Total Net Revenues increased
by 46.7% from Php7.05 billion in 2013
to Php10.35 billion in 2014. This top
line growth combined with some cost
improvements and production efficiency
initiatives drove return on sales to double
digits from 9.62% in 2013 to 16.68% in 2014.
In July 24, 2014, Macay Holdings
paid cash dividends to its common
shareholders in the amount of Php1.44
billion. Macay Holdings’ financial position
remains strong with net debt to equity
at 44.2% as of December 31, 2014 .
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This past year was one filled with change,
and has opened the door to exciting
opportunities for the future. MACAY
HOLDINGS, INC. will continue its prime
business development strategy to expand
its’ revenue base through the possibilities
of strategic acquisitions and partnerships,
and by diversifying its product line within
the food and beverage segment of the
Philippines’ consumer market. MACAY
HOLDINGS will pursue its expansion
based on core growth and value-based
acquisitions and joint ventures and is
actively recruiting management talent
from external sources.
This step comes at an opportune time.
MACAY HOLDINGS has benefited from
the economic success of the Philippine
economy, and is ideally positioned to
parlay the success of its’ existing beverage
company into new business ventures.
We thank God for guiding us, and for
giving us the wisdom and courage to
make the right decisions.
And to you our shareholders: thank you
for your continued support and belief
in us. We are proud of what we have
achieved so far, and excited for the
coming year.
God bless,

Alfredo M. Yao
Chairman

Antonio I. Panajon
President

“We intend to
capitalize on
our expertise in downline,
mass-based channels
distribution across the
country by growing
our portfolio through
investments in companies
with mass-based products
with large market
potential.”
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ASIAWIDE
REFRESHMENTS
CORPORATION

Inspired to Grow
• RC Cola is an American icon for 110 years,
serving up great taste since 1905.
• Consumers enjoy RC Cola in more than
45 countries worldwide. It is now the
preferred cola in the Philippines.
• Macay Holdings, Inc. through its subsidiary
ARC Refreshments Corporation is just
one of the over100 bottling plants and
distributors that make up the global network
of Royal Crown Cola International, sharing
the common commitment to inspire each
other to grow.

• The Company’s mass market distribution
network covers sari-sari stores and
supermarkets throughout the country.
It is supported by the presence of nine (9)
bottling plants in key locations around the
Philippines , boosting brand availability
for RC Cola as well as the other brands
developed by ARC Refreshment which
include Fruit Soda, Juicy Lemon and Arcy’s
Rootbeer.
• Majority of our senior officers have
extensive experience in the beverage
industry that will provide the wisdom as we
seek opportunities to expand our business.

Isabela

Pangasinan
Pampanga

Antipolo City

Quezon City

Laguna

Cebu

Cagayan de Oro
Davao City
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Alfredo M. Yao
Chairman

Antonio I. Panajon
President

Jeffrey S. Yao
Vice President

Fernando R. Balatbat
Treasurer

Carolyn S. Yao
Director

Roberto A. Atendido
Director

Mary Grace S. Yao
Director
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Rinaldi C. Aves
Director

Gerardo T. Garcia
Director

Roberto F. Anonas, Jr
Independent Director

Jesus G. Gallegas, Jr.
Independent Director

Albert S. Toribio
Director

Armando M. Yao
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Macay Holdings, Inc.
137 Yakal Street, San Antonio Village
Makati City
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Macay Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Macay Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiary
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards.
Other Matter
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2012 which are presented for comparative purposes to the
2014 and 2013 consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been prepared using the 2012 stand-alone financial statements of Asiawide
Refreshments Corporation and Mega Asia Bottling Corporation. Those stand-alone financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose
reports dated March 31, 2013 and April 8, 2013, respectively, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. We were not engaged to audit,
review or apply any procedures to the said 2012 consolidated financial statements of the Group. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the 2012 consolidated financial statements of the Group taken as a whole.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

John T.Villa
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 94065
SEC Accreditation No. 0783-AR-1 (Group A),
February 9, 2012, valid until April 30, 2015
Tax Identification No. 901-617-005
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-76-2015,
February 27, 2015, valid until February 26, 2018
PTR No. 4751340, January 5, 2015, Makati City
April 8, 2015
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MACAY HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

December 31
2014

2013

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)
Short-term investments (Note 4)
Trade and other receivables (Note 5)
Inventories (Note 6)
Other current assets (Note 7)
Total Current Assets

P1,463,113,898
20,000,000
375,742,499
1,581,183,837
136,751,323
3,576,791,557

P4,714,985,533
−
232,075,996
1,305,915,875
162,252,719
6,415,230,123

1,057,834,280
1,608,008,739
−
40,690,584
651,873,143
3,358,406,746

975,115,220
957,784,271
75,001,728
−
157,617,015
2,165,518,234

P6,935,198,303

P8,580,748,357

P2,664,957,648
103,291,516
284,701,614
3,052,950,778

P2,767,495,898
456,102,869
47,068,617
3,270,667,384

Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefits liability (Note 20)
Long-term loans payable (Note 12)
Deferred tax liabilities - net (Note 21)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

89,587,068
−
−
89,587,068
3,142,537,846

55,647,698
50,000,000
78,284
105,725,982
3,376,393,366

Equity
Capital stock - P1 par value (Note 13)
Additional paid-in capital
Equity reserve (Note 2)
Remeasurement losses on retirement benefits liability (Note 20)
Retained earnings (Note 13)
Total Equity

1,068,393,223
1,153,568,289
−
(26,473,732)
1,597,172,677
3,792,660,457

1,068,393,223
1,153,568,289
1,795,198,536
(7,799,616)
1,194,994,559
5,204,354,991

P6,935,198,303

P8,580,748,357

Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8)
Deferred pallets and containers (Note 9)
Investment in an associate (Note 10)
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 21)
Other noncurrent assets (Note 7)
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 11)
Short-term loans payable (Note 12)
Income tax payable
Total Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MACAY HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Years Ended December 31

REVENUES
Sale of goods
Tolling revenues (Note 18h)
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES (Note 14)
GROSS PROFIT
EXPENSES
Selling and marketing (Note 15)
General and administrative (Note 16)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest income (Notes 4 and 18)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net
Interest expense
Others - net (Note 17)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX (Note 21)
Current
Deferred
NET INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement losses on retirement benefits, net of tax (Note 20)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 24)

2014

2013

2012

P10,346,618,774
5,528,354
10,352,147,128
6,689,985,641

P7,047,081,394
7,587,972
7,054,669,366
5,165,304,264

P4,258,230,331
−
4,258,230,331
3,221,858,995

3,662,161,487

1,889,365,102

1,036,371,336

945,048,542
357,902,413
1,302,950,955

588,273,182
327,082,191
915,355,373

585,296,427
276,497,186
861,793,613

36,246,295
4,515,016
(457,036)
19,799,321
60,103,596
2,419,314,128

21,418,719
(4,769,776)
(3,624,520)
(8,611,107)
4,413,316
978,423,045

7,196,250
−
(783,528)
−
6,412,722
180,990,445

726,447,416
(32,765,675)
693,681,741

292,460,142
78,284
292,538,426

54,297,133
−
54,297,133

1,725,632,387

685,884,619

126,693,312

(18,674,116)

(7,799,616)

−

P1,706,958,271

P678,085,003

P126,693,312

P1.62

P0.64

P0.12

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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−
−
P1,068,393,223

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income (loss)

Balances at December 31, 2014

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

−

Net income for the year

1,068,393,223

Balances at December 31, 2013

−

−

Total comprehensive income (loss)

Cash dividends (Note 13)

−

Other comprehensive loss

−

−

Net income for the year

Distribution to owners of Asiawide and Mega Asia (Note 2)

−

1,068,393,223

−

−

P1,068,393,223

Net assets of the Parent Company upon obtaining control (Note 2)

Balances at December 31, 2012

Total comprehensive income

Effect of pooling of interest (Note 2)

Balances at January 1, 2012

Capital Stock

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

P1,153,568,289

−

−

−

−

−

1,153,568,289

−

−

−

−

1,153,568,289

−

−

P1,153,568,289

MACAY HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

P−

−

−

−

(1,441,448,535)

(353,750,001)

1,795,198,536

−

−

−

3,663,410,048

(1,868,211,512)

−

(1,868,211,512)

P−

Equity
Reserve
(Note 2)

(P26,473,732)

(18,674,116)

(18,674,116)

−

−

−

(7,799,616)

(7,799,616)

(7,799,616)

−

−

−

−

−

P−

Remeasurement
Losses on
Retirement
Liability

P1,597,172,677

1,725,632,387

−

1,725,632,387

(882,316)

(1,322,571,953)

1,194,994,559

685,884,619

−

685,884,619

−

509,109,940

126,693,312

−

P382,416,628

Retained
Earnings

P3,792,660,457

1,706,958,271

(18,674,116)

1,725,632,387

(1,442,330,851)

(1,676,321,954)

5,204,354,991

678,085,003

(7,799,616)

685,884,619

3,663,410,048

862,859,940

126,693,312

(1,868,211,512)

P2,604,378,140

Total

MACAY HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Years Ended December 31
2014
2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 14, 15 and 16)
Provision for impairment losses on:
Inventories (Note 6)
Trade and other receivables (Note 5)
Write-off of creditable withholding taxes (Note 17)
Interest expense
Interest income (Note 18)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net
Write-off of uncollectible account (Note 5)
Write-off of input VAT (Note 17)
Others
Operating income before working capital changes
Increase (decrease) in:
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables
Short-term loans payable
Retirement benefits liability
Net cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for net assets purchased (Notes 1 and 2)
Additions to:
Deferred pallets and containers expense (Note 9)
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8)
Acquisition of an associate (Note 10)
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent assets
Proceeds from sale/disposal of:
Deferred pallets and containers
Property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activities

P2,419,314,128

P978,423,045

P180,990,445

688,441,416

687,826,612

690,738,439

11,562,092
2,169,999
9,736,528
457,036
(36,246,295)
(1,252,482)
−
−
−
3,094,182,422

−
1,152,816
−
3,624,520
(21,418,719)
(2,095,490)
4,137,833
4,899,248
(1,928)
1,656,547,937

−
−
−
783,528
−
−
−
−
−
872,512,412

(20,000,000)
(335,103,600)
(286,830,054)
(140,656,882)

−
(57,176,203)
(742,082,282)
(52,456,095)

883,843,653
(192,822,955)
7,262,061
3,009,874,645
34,931,666
(457,036)
(397,559,876)
2,646,789,399

1,624,777,898
357,184,742
(2,328,368)
2,784,467,629
16,867,706
(3,624,520)
(242,481,831)
2,555,228,984

−
(53,674,542)
83,401,915
18,667,022
−
(405,723,253)
(46,180,449)
−
469,003,105
−
(783,528)
(55,094,263)
413,125,314

(1,570,519,360)

−

−

(1,129,875,422)
(420,133,301)
−
(542,883,267)

(974,937,556)
(722,895,820)
(74,999,800)
(93,139,197)

(247,998,851)
(169,482,968)
−
26,459,138

−
−
(3,663,411,350)

20,085,945
5,729,317
(1,840,157,111)

−
−
(391,022,681)

(Forward)
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MACAY HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid (Note 13)
Availment of long-term loans
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
UPON OBTAINING CONTROL (Notes 1 and 23)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXCLUDED IN
NET ASSETS PURCHASED (Note 23)

2014

Years Ended December 31
2013

(P1,442,330,851)
−
(1,442,330,851)
1,252,482
(2,457,700,320)
−
(794,171,315)

2012

P−
50,000,000
50,000,000

P−
−
−

3,511,266

−

768,583,139

22,102,633

3,653,466,738

−

−

−

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

4,714,985,533

292,935,656

270,833,023

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Note 4)

P1,463,113,898

P4,714,985,533

P292,935,656

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MACAY HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information
Macay Holdings, Inc. (the Parent Company or MHI) is a company incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 16, 1930 primarily to reflect the business of a holding company. Under its amended Articles of Incorporation,
the corporate life of the Parent Company was extended for another 50 years up to October 16, 2030. The shares of stock of Macay Holdings, Inc. are
listed and traded as “MACAY” on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) starting 2013 (formerly MAKE). The Parent Company owns 100% interest and
operates as the holding company of ARC Refreshments Corporation (ARC Refreshments), a beverage company.
The registered office address and principal place of business of the Parent Company is 137 Yakal Street, San Antonio Village, Makati City.
The Parent Company and its subsidiary are collectively referred to in the notes to the consolidated financial statements as the “Group”.
Change in Ownership
On September 24, 2013, Mazy’s Capital, Inc. (MCI, a Filipino corporation) and Maybank Kim Eng Holdings Limited (MKEHL) signed a Share Purchase
Agreement (the Agreement), wherein MCI purchased all of the issued common shares held by MKEHL totaling to 958,923,466 shares, representing
an 89.75% stake in the Parent Company (the Sale Shares), for the purchase price of P3.3298 per share (with the purchase transaction referred to as
the Acquisition). Among the conditions for such acquisition was the sale for cash of substantially all of the assets of the Parent Company to Maybank
ATR KE Capital, which assets included the Parent Company’s shareholdings in its subsidiaries, AsianLife and General Assurance Corporation and ATR
KE Land. Consequently, these subsidiaries, which made up the former businesses of the Parent Company, were sold to Maybank ATR KE Capital.
Total consideration for the Acquisition amounted to P3.19 billion. The transaction was executed in the PSE on October 25, 2013 (start of common
control). As a result, the Parent Company retained mostly only cash and receivables as its assets, with the latter consisting almost entirely of amounts
due from the sale.
MCI is 42.86% owned by Mega Asia Bottling Corporation (Mega Asia) and 57.14% owned by Zest-O Corporation (Zest-O). Mega Asia is an entity under
common control while Zest-O is the ultimate parent company of the Group.
On December 3, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the change of the trading symbol of the Parent Company’s shares in the PSE from
“MAKE” to “MACAY’. On the same date, the shareholders of the Parent Company approved the change in its corporate name from Maybank ATR
Kim Eng Financial Corporation to Macay Holdings, Inc. The SEC approved the amended articles of incorporation for the Parent Company’s change in
corporate name on January 27, 2014.
Investment in New Business
On November 18, 2013, the Parent Company, through its Board of Directors, approved the investment in a food and beverage company.
On December 3, 2013, the SEC approved the incorporation of ARC Refreshments (the subsidiary), of which the Parent Company is a shareholder to
the extent of 250 million shares representing 100.00% ownership. On June 26, 2014, the Parent Company through its BOD, approved the additional
investment in ARC Refreshments amounting to 190 million shares at P10 per share for a total investment of P1,900 million.
ARC Refreshments is primarily engaged in the business of trading of goods such as beverages on wholesale bases and to operate, conduct, and maintain
the business of manufacturing, importing, buying, selling, handling, bottling, distribution, trading, or otherwise dealing in, at wholesale and, to the extent
allowed by law, drinks and other containers or dispensers and other related goods of whatever nature, and any and all materials, supplies, and other
goods used or employed in or related to the manufacture of such finished products.
On December 27, 2013, the BOD of ARC Refreshments approved (a) the acquisition of substantially all the operating assets of Mega Asia consisting
of machinery and equipment used in its bottling operations and (b) the acquisition of the operating assets of Asiawide Refreshments Corporation
(Asiawide) consisting of machinery and equipment, bottles, inventories, receivables and other assets and the assumption of some liabilities incurred in
the normal course of business.
On January 31, 2014, ARC Refreshments executed the Asset Purchase Agreements (APAs) with Mega Asia and Asiawide. The carrying values of the
net assets transferred as of January 31, 2014 amounted to P1.0 billion and P0.57 billion from Asiawide and Mega Asia, respectively. Total consideration
amounted to P1.57 billion which was settled on July 13, 2014 (see Note 2).
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, were approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 8, 2015.

2.

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Philippine peso (P), which is the functional currency of the Parent Company and the subsidiary. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest P, except
when otherwise indicated.
On January 31, 2014, ARC Refreshments completed the acquisition of the operating assets of Asiawide and Mega Asia through a cash transaction
(see Note 1). For accounting purposes, the transaction was accounted for similar to a reverse acquisition following Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) 3, Business Combination. Asiawide was deemed to be the accounting acquirer under the principles of PFRS 3. In a reverse acquisition,
the legal acquirer is identified as the acquiree for accounting purposes because based on the substance of the transaction, the legal acquiree is adjudged
to be the entity that gained control over the legal acquirer. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared as
a continuation of consolidated financial statements of Asiawide and Mega Asia. The comparative December 31, 2013 information presented in the
consolidated financial statements are those of Asiawide and Mega Asia and not those originally presented in the previous financial statements of the
Group with its old businesses (accounting acquiree).
Because the consolidated financial statements represent a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of Asiawide and Mega Asia, except for
their capital structure, the consolidation will reflect the following:
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Before the asset purchase transaction (as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013)
a)

the assets and liabilities of Asiawide and Mega Asia recognized and measured at their carrying amounts, not at their acquisition-date fair values,
plus the assets and liabilities of Parent Company and ARC Refreshments;

b)

the retained earnings and other equity balances of Asiawide and Mega Asia (i.e. not those of the Parent Company) plus the retained earnings
and other equity balances of Parent Company and ARC Refreshments from the date the common control was established;

c)

the total equity is that of Asiawide and Mega Asia but the legal capital (common shares) would be that of Parent Company;

d)

the resulting equity reserve represents (1) the legal capital of Asiawide and Mega Asia; and (2) the retained earnings and other equity balances
(other than the legal capital) of Parent Company before common control; and

e)

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects that of Asiawide and Mega Asia for the full period; that of ARC Refreshment from
the date of incorporation; and that of the Parent Company from the date common control was established.

After the asset purchase transaction (as at and for the year ended December 31, 2014)
a)

the transferred assets and liabilities of Asiawide and Mega Asia recognized and measured at their pre-combination carrying amounts, not at
their acquisition-date fair values;

b)

legal capital of the Parent Company;

c)

the retained earnings and other equity balances (other than the legal capital) of the Parent Company and ARC Refreshments;

d)

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income will reflect that of Asiawide and Mega Asia for one-month period
(i.e. from January 1, 2014 up to the date of asset purchase transactions), and that of ARC Refreshment and Parent Company for the full
period.

Impact of the asset purchase agreement which was executed on January 31, 2014 to the consolidated financial statements
In 2014, the execution of the asset purchase agreement was accounted for as distribution to the owners of Asiawide and Mega Asia. The cash payment
of P1.57 billion plus the net assets excluded from the asset purchase represents the consideration to the distribution to the owners with corresponding
decreases to the retained earnings related to Asiawide and Mega Asia and equity reserve.
Cash payment
Net assets excluded in the asset purchase agreement
Retained earnings of Asiawide and Mega Asia
Equity reserve

P1,570,519,360
105,802,594
P1,676,321,954
P1,322,571,953
353,750,001
P1,676,321,954

Details of the net assets excluded from the asset purchased are as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Net noncash assets and liabilities (Notes 10 and 23)

P794,171,315
(688,368,721)
P105,802,594

Equity Reserve
As at December 31, 2012, equity reserve account as a result of the application of pooling-of-interest method represents the difference between the
legal capital of Asiawide and Mega Asia as against the legal capital of the Parent Company.
The net assets of the Parent Company were consolidated starting October 25, 2013 upon obtaining control. This represents the movement of equity
reserve from December 31, 2012 to December 31, 2013.
Reverse acquisition applies only to the consolidated financial statements. The Parent Company financial statements will continue to represent
Macay Holdings, Inc. as a stand-alone entity.
Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with PFRS. The separate financial statements of the subsidiary
are prepare using the same reporting date and reporting period as those of the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee.
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Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
•
•
•

Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
•
•
•

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the statement
of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over
a subsidiary, it:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received
Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained
Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
New and Amended Standards and Interpretations and Improved PFRS Adopted in Calendar Year 2014
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of the following new and amended
standards and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and improved PFRS which the
Group has adopted starting January 1, 2014. Unless otherwise indicated, the adoption did not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and
PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements)
These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity under PFRS 10.
The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. The amendments must be
applied retrospectively, subject to certain transition relief.
Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 		
(Amendments)
These amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’ and the criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms
of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting and are applied retrospectively.
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain
criteria and retrospective application is required.
PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments)
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, on the disclosures required under PAS 36. In addition,
these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which impairment loss has been
recognized or reversed during the period.
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs.
For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective application is required for IFRIC 21.
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Improvements to PFRS
•

•

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
In the 2010 - 2012 annual improvements cycle, seven amendments to six standards were issued, which included an amendment to PFRS 13,
Fair Value Measurement. The amendment to PFRS 13 is effective immediately and it clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
In the 2011 - 2013 annual improvements cycle, four amendments to four standards were issued, which included an amendment to PFRS 1,
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards-First-time Adoption of PFRS.The amendment to PFRS 1 is effective immediately. It clarifies
that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided
either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2014
The Group will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the
Group does not expect the adoption of these new, revised and amended PFRS, PAS and IFRIC will have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements.
Effective in 2015:
PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments)
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions
are linked to service, they should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost
in the period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. This amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
Improvements to PFRS
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
•
•
•
•
•

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition
PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business Combination
PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the
Entity’s Assets
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation and Amortization
PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 and are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
•
•
•

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
PAS 40, Investment Property

Effective in 2016:
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
(Amendments)
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating
a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based
method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets.
The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants (Amendments)
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological
assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After initial recognition, bearer
plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity).
The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For
government grants related to bearer plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will apply. The amendments
are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.
PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments)
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate
financial statements. Entities already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements will have to apply
that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required
to apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with
early adoption permitted.
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PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Saleor Contribution of Assets Between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that
do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016.
PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the
joint operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify
that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing
joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation and are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.
PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting
policies for regulatory deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present the regulatory
deferral accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures on the nature of, and risks associated with,
the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016.
Improvements to PFRS
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
•
•
•
•
•

PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in Methods of Disposal
PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements
PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

Effective in 2018:
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)
In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application
permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is
permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015.
The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets and impairment methodology for
financial assets, but will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. The adoption will also have an effect on
the Group’s application of hedge accounting. The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard. The Group is also currently not
into hedging activities.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer.The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue.The new revenue
standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective
application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early adoption permitted.
Deferred Effectivity:
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through
subcontractors. The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except when such
contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11 or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized
based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership
are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the FRSC have deferred the
effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of
the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.
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Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Sale of Goods
Net sales reflected in the statement of comprehensive income pertain to sale of goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which is upon delivery of the goods. Revenue recognized is net of trade deals and
pick-up discounts.
In 2014 and 2013, the Group recognized net sales amounting to P10.35 billion and P7.05 billion, net of trade and pick-up discounts of P2.46 billion and
P1.61 billion, respectively.
Tolling Revenues
Revenue from tolling services is recognized when the service has been rendered.
Interest Income
Interest income from bank deposits and short-term investments is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest rate method.
Other Income
Other income is recognized when earned. Sale of scrap materials and cullets is recognized as revenue upon delivery of the items and transfer of control
to the buyer.
Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or depletions of assets or incurrence
of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Cost and expenses are generally
recognized when the expense arises following the accrual basis of accounting.
Cost of Sales
Cost of sales, which comprise mainly of purchases of raw materials and related production cost, are recognized when goods are sold, simultaneous with
the recognition of the related revenue arising from the sale.
Cost of Services
Cost of services which mainly pertain to the cost of tolling services rendered to Asiawide Kalbe Philippines, Inc. (AKPI) is recognized when the cost is
incurred.
Selling and Marketing Expenses
Selling and marketing expenses consist of costs associated with the development and execution of marketing promotion activities and all expenses
connected with selling, servicing and distributing Group products. Selling and marketing expenses are generally recognized when incurred.
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses are incurred in the normal course of business and are generally recognized when the services are used or expenses
arise.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of placement and that are subject of an insignificant risk of change in value.
Short-term Investments
Short-term investments generally represent investments in short-term placements and time deposits which have original maturities in excess of three
months but less than twelve months.
Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using trade date
accounting.
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value (in the case of an asset) or received (in the case of a liability). The initial measurement of
financial instruments, except for those classified as at FVPL, includes transaction cost.
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:financial assets at FVPL,held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets,loans and receivables andAFS
financial assets.The Group classifies its financial liabilities as financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities.The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired or liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition and,where allowed and appropriate,re-evaluates such designation at every financial reporting date. As at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no AFS financial assets, financial assets at FVPL, HTM financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains
and losses relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of
financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax benefits.
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“Day 1” Difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between
the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless it qualifies for the recognition
as some other type of asset. In cases where data which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as financial assets held for trading, designated as AFS financial
assets or designated as at FVPL. This accounting policy relates to the Group’s “Cash and cash equivalents”, “Short-term investments” and “Trade and
other receivables” accounts in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Loans and receivables are recognized initially at fair value, which normally pertains to the billable amount. After initial measurement, loans and receivables
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment losses. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization, if any, is included
in interest income under “Interest income” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment of
receivables are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income under “General and administrative expenses” account. The level of
allowance for impairment losses is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of accounts (see accounting policy on
Impairment of Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost).
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets when they are expected to be realized within twelve months from the reporting date or within
the normal operating cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
Other Financial Liabilities
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not classified as at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of
issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the
residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the
date of issue. Other financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value, less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial measurement, other
financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities, if any, are recognized in “Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net” account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Other financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities when they are expected to be settled within twelve months from the reporting date or when
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, they are classified as noncurrent
liabilities.
This accounting policy applies primarily to the Group’s “Trade and other payables”,“Short-term loans payable” and other obligations that meet the above
definition (other than liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payable and retirement liability).
Impairment of Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets
is deemed impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has or have occurred after initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that borrower is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as charges in arrear or economic condition that correlate with default.
The Group first assesses whether an objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
In relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. Impaired
receivables are derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.
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Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:
1.
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
2.
the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or,
3.
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has entered into a “pass through” arrangement, and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Financial Liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost is determined using the moving-average method and includes
expenditures incurred in bringing the materials and supplies to their existing location and condition. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Any write-down of materials, supplies, spare parts and finished goods to NRV is recognized as an expense in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the year incurred.
Containers (returnable bottles, pallets and shells) included under inventories, are stated at deposit value, which is the estimated salvage value of the
containers at the end of the estimated trip life.
Investment in an Associate
An associate is an enterprise in which the Group has significant influence but not control over the financial and operating policies. In 2013, the Group
follows the equity method of accounting for its 42.86% investment, which is equivalent to 749,998 shares, in MCI. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profits and losses
of the investee after the date of the acquisition. Dividends received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of investment. When the Group’s
share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of an associate, the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred obligations in respect of the associate. Any excess of accumulated equity in net losses over the cost of investment is recognized as a liability
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Deferred Pallets and Containers
The Group purchases returnable containers (i.e. beverage bottles) that are being circulated in the normal course of trade. The containers
are initially recorded at cost, net of an estimated value representing the salvage value of the containers at the end of estimated trip life
(see accounting policy on Inventories). These containers are presented as “Deferred pallets and containers” in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and are carried at cost, net of an estimated salvage value less accumulated amortization and any impairment in value. They are amortized over
four years representing the trip life of the containers. Amortization of “Deferred pallets and containers” is included under “Cost of sales and services”
account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Amortization of bottles and shells and pallets commences once they are available for use over the estimated useful life of four years
(see Note 3 for the change in estimated useful life of deferred containers in 2014). An allowance is provided for excess, unusable and obsolete
returnable bottles and cases based on the specific identification method.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, depletion and any impairment in value. Land is stated
at cost less any impairment in value. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of construction cost, and its purchase price, including
import duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition for its intended
use. Subsequent costs that can be measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group. The costs of day-to-day servicing of an asset are recognized as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset less its residual value over
its estimated useful life.
The average estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Category
Building
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Waste water facility
Leasehold improvements
Laboratory equipment
Tools
Office and other equipment

Number of Years
15-20
10
5
2-5
5 or lease term, whichever is shorter
2
3
2-3

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.
When assets are disposed of, or are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from their disposals, the cost and
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or
disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property, plant and equipment and deferred pallets and containers are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount, the asset or cash generating unit (CGU) is written down to its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s
length transaction less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the non-financial asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the profit or loss.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The Group used value in use to assess the recoverable amount of an asset.
Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognized for the asset
no longer exist or have decreased. The recovery is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. However, the increased carrying amount of
an asset due to a recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for that asset in prior years.
Input Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Input VAT represents VAT imposed to the Group by its suppliers for the acquisition of goods and services as required by the Philippine taxation laws
and regulations.
Input taxes, which are included under the “Other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position and stated at their
estimated net realizable value, will be used to offset against the Group’s output VAT liabilities. Output VAT is the amount of VAT calculated and charged
on the Group’s own sale of goods and services to third parties.
Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net of
any reimbursement.
Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the shares are sold at premium the difference between the proceeds
and the par value is credited to “Additional paid-in capital”.
Equity reserve account in 2013 arises from the application of the pooling of interest method in connection with the asset purchase transaction.
Retained earnings represent all accumulated profits or losses of the Group and dividend distributions, if any, to shareholders of the Parent Company
and other capital adjustments.
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Leases
Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;
There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specific asset; or,
There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment
for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).
Operating Leases - The Group as a Lessee
Operating leases represent those leases under which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assets remain with the lessors.
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
Provisions
Provisions are generally recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net of
any reimbursement.
Retirement Benefits Liability
The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced
by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.
Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
•
Service cost
•
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
•
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit
or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the
passage of time which is determined by applying the discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest
on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. These are retained in other comprehensive income until full settlement of the obligation.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences between rate at transaction date
and rate at settlement date or reporting date are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Income Taxes
Current Income Tax
Current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.
Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the reporting liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward benefit of unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
income tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.
Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and as other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and not as part of net income.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Events After the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events) are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when material.
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing income applicable to common shares by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year with retroactive adjustments for stock dividends. Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as basic EPS, however, net income attributable to
common shares and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares.
Segment Reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments, which operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker to make decisions about how resources are to be allocated to each of the segments and to assess their performances, and for which
discrete financial information is available. Financial information on segment reporting is presented in Note 25.
3.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Group to make judgments and estimates that affect
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events may occur which
will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as they become reasonably determinable.
Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the judgment below, apart from those involving estimations, which has
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Identifying a Business Combination
The Group determines whether a transaction or other event is a business combination by applying PFRS which requires that the asset acquired and
liabilities assumed constitute a business.
The Group has determined that the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the asset purchase transaction entered into on January 31, 2014
constitute a business (see Note 1). The assets acquired are substantially all the operating assets of Asiawide and Mega Asia used in the manufacturing,
bottling and distributing operations and the liabilities assumed are those incurred in the normal course of business.
The Parent Company is a shell listed company with only cash and cash equivalents as the primary assets and therefore not comprising a business upon
acquisition on October 25, 2013 (see Note 1).
Determining Operating Lease Commitments - The Group as Lessee
The Group has entered into various operating lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has determined that, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that the lessor retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties because the lease agreements
do not transfer to the Group the ownership over the assets at the end of the lease term and do not provide the Group with a bargain purchase option
over the leased assets and so accounts for the contracts as operating leases. Rent expense charged to current operation amounted to P321.03 million,
P28.33 million and nil in 2014, 2013 and 2012 (see Notes 14 and 15).
Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year are discussed below.
Estimating Impairment Losses on Inventories
The Group maintains allowance for inventory losses at a level considered adequate to reflect the cost of materials and supplies over its NRV. The Group
recognizes materials and supplies at NRV whenever NRV becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price
levels or other causes. Increase in the NRV of materials and supplies will increase cost of materials and supplies but only to the extent of their original
acquisition costs. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of inventories, net of allowance for inventory obsolescence, amounted to
P1,581.18 million and P1,305.92 million, respectively.
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Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates
based on factors that include asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets
tempered by related industry benchmark information. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes
in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by
changes in these factors and circumstances.
The Group recognized depreciation expense amounting to P208.79 million, P153.81 million and P121.42 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively
(see Notes 14, 15 and 16). The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,057.83 million and P975.12 million as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 8).
Estimating Useful Lives of Deferred Pallets and Containers
In accordance with its policy, the Group periodically reviews the estimated useful lives of the deferred pallets and containers based on the containers profile
and optimal float analyses. The estimation of useful lives is based on collective assessment of internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets.
A review in 2014 indicated that the actual trip lives of the containers were longer than the 2013 estimate. As a result, effective February 1, 2014, in view of
the change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the assets, the Group revised its estimate of the useful lives of its containers from three years
to four years. The effect of this change in estimate resulted in the reduction of amortization expense by P186.10 million in 2014. The change is expected
to increase the amortization expense by P174.52 million in 2015, P19.66 million in 2016, decrease in amortization by P11.03 million in 2017, and increase
by P2.95 million in 2018.
The Group recognized amortization expense amounting to P479.65 million, P534.02 million and P569.31 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The carrying value of deferred pallets and containers as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P1,608.01 million and P957.78 million, respectively
(see Note 9).
Estimating Salvage Value of Deferred Pallets and Containers
In determining the estimated salvage value of deferred pallets and containers, management takes into account the most reliable evidence available at the
times the estimates are made. The salvage value is equal to the amount the Group would receive currently if the assets were already of the age and in
the condition expected at the end of estimated trip life.
The deposit values of deferred pallets and containers are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates based on
factors that include asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets tempered by
related industry benchmark information.
Estimating Retirement Benefits Cost
The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. These assumptions
are described in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s retirement liability amounted to P89.59 million and P55.65 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Net pension cost
amounted to P32.01 million and P22.12 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 20).
Estimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each reporting date and reduces the amounts to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. The Group’s
assessment on the recognition of deferred income tax assets on deductible temporary differences is based on forecasted taxable income. This forecast
is based on the Group’s past results and future expectations on revenues and expenses.
The Group has deferred income tax assets amounting to P41.06 million and P1.43 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 21).
4.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consists of:

Cash on hand and with banks
Cash equivalents

2014
P526,941,654
936,172,244
P1,463,113,898

2013
P577,443,171
4,137,542,362
P4,714,985,533

Cash with banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents consist of short-term placements which are made for varying
periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the prevailing short-term placement
rates.
Cash deposits with maturities more than three months but less than one year are classified as short-term investments in the 2014 consolidated
statement of financial position amounting to
P20.00 million.
Interest income on cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments amounted to P36.25 million and P14.22 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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5.

Trade and Other Receivables
This account consists of:

Trade receivables (Note 18)
Due from related parties (Note 18)
Receivables from officers and employees
Others
Less allowance for impairment losses on receivables

2014
P239,238,225
112,949,759
8,475,998
17,248,516
377,912,498
2,169,999
P375,742,499

2013
P157,091,707
59,968,750
9,454,340
17,130,241
243,645,038
11,569,042
P232,075,996

“Trade receivables” are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 60 days term.
“Receivables from officers and employees” represent loans, cash advances and other receivables from employees.
“Others” consist of advances to contractors and external receivables to other companies, among others.
The balances and movements of allowance for probable losses on trade receivables are as follows:
2014
P11,569,042
2,169,999
(11,569,042)
−
P2,169,999

Balances at beginning of year
Provisions
Reversals
Write-off
Balances at end of year

2013
P10,687,984
1,152,816
−
(271,758)
P11,569,042

In 2014, the Group reversed the P11.57 million allowance for probable losses to equity reserve pertaining to receivables that were not part of the
acquired operating assets by the Parent company in January 2014 (see Notes 1 and 2).
In 2013, the Group wrote-off receivables amounting to P4.41 million after assessing that these were uncollectible (see Note 17), P0.27 million of these
were provided with an allowance.
6.

Inventories
This account consists of:

Inventories at NRV:
Containers and pallets
Spare parts and supplies
Inventories at cost:
Raw materials
Finished goods

2014

2013

P1,031,364,182
154,841,442

P925,160,507
76,245,654

331,133,536
63,844,677
P1,581,183,837

256,281,413
48,228,301
P1,305,915,875

The Group provided allowance for inventory losses on unusable containers in circulation that failed to meet the Group’s quality standards and excess
bottles as determined by management based on the containers profile and optimal float analyses conducted by the Group. The Group provides
allowance for inventory losses on finished goods and raw materials whenever utility of inventories becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical
deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes.
The Group provided provision for inventory obsolescence and condemnation amounting to P11.56 million in 2014.
The cost of inventories sold recognized in profit or loss amounted to P4,908.48 million and P3,589.21 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 14).
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7.

Other Assets
This account consists of:
Current:
Prepaid rent
Prepaid insurance
Supplies
Prepaid vehicle registration
Creditable withholding tax (CWT)
Prepaid taxes and licenses
Deferred withholding tax
Others
(Forward)
Input VAT
Less: Output VAT

Noncurrent:
Security deposits
Deposits with suppliers
Deferred input VAT
Others

2014

2013

P16,855,441
10,738,269
4,291,385
188,389
32,309
24,013
−
5,536,721
37,666,527

P9,447,843
10,409,846
2,647,255
65,020
9,736,528
817,346
425,025
3,826,450
37,375,313

P187,741,980
(88,657,184)
99,084,796
P136,751,323

P198,254,030
(73,376,624)
124,877,406
P162,252,719

2014

2013

P350,349,197
186,752,824
93,252,469
21,518,653
P651,873,143

P−
108,353,151
49,263,864
−
P157,617,015

“Prepaid rent” pertains to payments made in advance for rentals of billboard advertisements, staff house and office rental covering a period of not more
than one year.
“Prepaid insurance” represents share in the Health Insurance coverage of the regular employees which are amortized over the period of the contract.
“Security deposits” pertain to various refundable rental deposits for the lease of land and building to Mega Asia (lessor) which shall answer for any and
all unpaid obligations of the Group to the lessor, as well as for any damage to the leased premises at the end of lease term.
“Deposits with suppliers” pertain to advances to suppliers for acquisition of machinery and equipment by the Group and advances made to brokers
for the release of imported goods.
“Deferred input VAT” represents VAT imposed on the Group by its suppliers and contractors for the acquisition of goods and services required under
Philippine taxation laws and regulations which are expected to be realized beyond one year from reporting date.
“Others” consist of other prepaid expense, accountable forms and computer supplies.
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8.

−
−

Disposals

Balances at end of year

Coolers

85,868,032
286,857,260
230,325,429
11,525,597
89,265,666
40,282,338
−
−
(8,502,478)
97,393,629
376,122,926
262,105,289
P35,330,525 P576,917,887 P242,641,577

44,768,813
−
(44,768,813)
−
P−

Vehicles

13,361,480
26,190
−
13,387,670
P7,628,098

P21,015,768
−
−
21,015,768

Tools

11,887,914
1,335,810
−
13,223,724
P4,072,594

P15,969,959
1,326,359
−
17,296,318

P9,826,258

48,844,791

(3,619,643)

7,273,816

45,190,618

58,671,049

(4,936,690)

4,871,907

P58,735,832

Office and Other
Equipment

10,653,121
1,284,025
(71,145)
11,866,001
P1,612,587

16,937,152
3,004,768
−
19,941,920
P8,817,027

P19,623,358
9,135,589
−
28,758,947

Total

P1,057,834,280

926,232,001

(121,790,238)

208,790,462

839,231,777

1,984,066,281

(250,414,017)

420,133,301

P1,814,346,997

Total

38,142,456
7,084,233
(36,071)
45,190,618
P13,545,214

738,801,657
153,808,627
(53,378,507)
839,231,777
P975,115,220

P43,742,201 P1,150,559,001
15,029,701
722,895,820
(36,070)
(59,107,824)
58,735,832 1,814,346,997

Leasehold Office and Other
Tools Improvements
Equipment

P22,586,166

645,728

(19,941,920)

645,728

19,941,920

23,231,894

(28,120,331)

22,593,278

P28,758,947

Leasehold
Improvements

P12,322,129
1,227,604
(71,145)
13,478,588

P2,197,646

13,281,227

−

1,415,226

11,866,001

15,478,873

−

2,000,285

P13,478,588

Laboratory
Equipment

P2,701,346

15,570,297

−

2,346,573

13,223,724

18,271,643

−

975,325

P17,296,318

Laboratory
Equipment

Waste Water
Facility

P6,264,566

15,470,754

−

2,083,084

13,387,670

21,735,320

−

719,552

P21,015,768

Waste Water
Facility

−
−
−
−
P84,549,711

Machinery and
Equipment

P326,398,410

337,172,106

−

75,066,817

262,105,289

663,570,516

(83,131)

158,906,781

P504,746,866

Vehicles

P49,398,489
−
(49,398,489)
−

Building

P687,859,888

495,247,098

−

119,124,172

376,122,926

1,183,106,986

−

230,066,173

P953,040,813

Machinery and
Equipment

P84,549,711 P128,568,888 P463,090,687 P312,277,811
−
4,155,266
489,950,126
202,071,175
−
−
−
(9,602,120)
84,549,711
132,724,154
953,040,813
504,746,866

Land

P−

−

(98,228,675)

835,046

97,393,629

−

(132,724,154)

−

P132,724,154

Building

Fully depreciated assets with a cost of P545.22 million and P484.76 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are still being used in the operations.

Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Balances at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
Disposals
Balances at end of year
Net Book Values

2013

P−

−

Depreciation and amortization

Net Book Values

−

Balances at beginning of year

and Amortization

−

(84,549,711)

Disposals

Balances at end of year

−

P84,549,711

Land

Additions

Balances at beginning of year

Accumulated Depreciation

Cost

2014

The rollforward and movements of this account are as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment

9.

Deferred Pallets and Containers
The rollforward and movement of this account are as follows:
2014

Cost:
Beginning balance
Additions
Ending balance
Accumulated amortization:
Beginning balance
Additions (Note 14)
Ending balance
Net book value

Containers

Pallets

Total

P4,145,601,859
1,125,082,797
5,270,684,656

P3,800,000
4,792,625
8,592,625

P4,149,401,859
1,129,875,422
5,279,277,281

3,190,984,255
478,563,828
3,669,548,083
P1,601,136,573

633,333
1,087,126
1,720,459
P6,872,166

3,191,617,588
479,650,954
3,671,268,542
P1,608,008,739

Containers

Pallets

Total

P3,907,840,885
971,137,556
4,878,978,441

P–
3,800,000
3,800,000

P3,907,840,885
974,937,556
4,882,778,441

3,345,712,734
533,384,652
3,879,097,386
45,263,451
P954,617,604

–
633,333
633,333
–
P3,166,667

3,345,712,734
534,017,985
3,879,730,719
45,263,451
P957,784,271

2013

Cost:
Beginning balance
Additions
Ending balance
Accumulated amortization:
Beginning balance
Additions (Note 14)
Ending balance
Less: Write-off
Net book value

Deferred pallets and containers arises from the difference of the containers acquisition cost which is the landed cost that includes the purchased cost
plus the incidental cost of importation less deposit value of the container and pallet (see Note 6). Amortization period is based on the estimated trip
lives of containers.
The write-off of containers pertains to breakages.
10. Investment in an Associate
On September 24, 2013, Mega Asia invested P75.00 million for 749,998 number of shares equivalent to 42.86% ownership in MCI.
The carrying value of the investment in an associate as of December 31, 2013 comprise of P75.00 million initial investment and P1,928 share in net
income of MCI.
The summarized financial information of the associate as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:
Assets
Liabilities
Equity
Proportion of the Company’s ownership
Carrying amount of the investment
Gross income
Operating expenses
Net income for the year
Group’s share of income for the year

P3,201,701,752
(3,026,697,253)
175,004,499
42.86%
P75,001,728
P4,497
–
4,497
P1,928

The investment in an associate was not part of the operating assets acquired by the Group in January 2014 (see Notes 1 and 2).
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11. Trade and Other Payables
This account consists of:

Trade payables (Note 18)
Containers deposit liability
Due to related parties (Note 18)
Non-trade payables
Accrued expenses:
Contracted services and professional fees
Utilities and facilities
Advertising and promotions
Rent (see Notes 18 and 19)
Travel, meeting and entertainment
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Withholding taxes
Others

2014
P1,471,747,179
552,668,028
337,518,569
19,731,283

2013
P1,783,962,080
446,963,016
144,576,059
198,843,142

62,697,632
43,503,139
33,282,029
17,517,597
16,530,897
14,253,297
9,556,710
5,316,565
80,634,723
P2,664,957,648

85,917,427
17,706,654
25,521,898
2,379,432
2,211,168
10,456,945
2,992,453
10,630,896
35,334,728
P2,767,495,898

“Trade payables” pertains to accounts payable to suppliers from purchases of materials and toll packing used in production. These are noninterestbearing and with payment terms which are dependent on the supplier’s credit terms, which is generally 30 to 90 days.
“Non-trade and other payables” pertains to all non-trade liabilities such as freight services and administration expenses, among others.
“Containers deposit liability” pertains to deposits made by its customer which are refundable after return of bottles in good condition.
“Accrued expenses-others” pertain to accrued hauling expenses, accrued freight and handling expenses, among others.
12. Loans Payable
This account consists of unsecured short-term peso denominated loans obtained from various local banks and an unsecured 2-year peso loan to
finance working capital requirements. The short-term loans are maturing in less than a year with interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 3.25% per annum.
Balance of short-term loans payable amounted to P103.29 million and P456.10 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The long-term
loan bears interest at 6% per annum and has an outstanding balance amounting to P50.00 million as of December 31, 2013.
Interest charged to profit or loss amounted to P0.46 million and P3.62 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The short-term and long-term loans amounting to P160.00 million and P50.00 million as of December 31, 2013, respectively, were not part of the
operating liabilities assumed by the Group in January 2014 (see Notes 1 and 2).
13. Equity
Capital Stock
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the details of the Parent Company’s capital stock are as follows:
Common stock:
Authorized - P1 par value
Issued and outstanding
Preferred stock:
Authorized - P1,000 par value
Issued and outstanding

P1,300,000,000
P1,068,393,223
P200,000,000
P–

There are no movements in the capital stock in 2014 and 2013.
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The following are the salient features of the preferred stock:
a.
Cumulative dividend at a rate to be determined solely by the BOD;
b.

Nonparticipating in the retained earnings remaining after dividend payments have been made on the preferred shares;

c.

Redeemable at such price, within such period, in such manner and under such terms and conditions as may be determined by the BOD;
and

d.

Non-voting.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the equity holdings of the shareholder groups are as follows:

Shareholder Group
MCI
Public

2014
Number
of Shares
958,941,673
109,451,550
1,068,393,223

Percentage
of Ownership
89.76%
10.24%
100.00%

2013
Number
of Shares
958,923,463
109,469,760
1,068,393,223

Percentage
of Ownership
89.75%
10.25%
100.00%

Retained Earnings
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company’s retained earnings amounted to P22.39 million and P1,468.25 million, respectively, which is
available for distribution as dividends to shareholders.
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the retained earnings of the subsidiary amounted to P1,595.02 million and P1,188.42 million, respectively, which is
available for distribution depending on the decision of the subsidiary’s BOD, subject to the SEC rules on how to calculate the dividends declarable to
shareholders.
Dividends
On June 26, 2014, the Parent Company declared cash dividend of P1.35 per share totaling P1,442.33 million. The cash dividend was paid on
July 24, 2014.
Securities Regulation Code Rule (SRC) Disclosures
Incorporation
Pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation (“AOI”) in 1930, as reconstructed after the loss of documents during the Second World War, the Parent
Company’s authorized capital stock was P40,000, divided into 400 shares with par value of P100 per share. Its principal stockholder then was
Mariano C. Mercado who owned 96 common shares. Other private stockholders owned 4 common shares.
Parent Company listing
The Parent Company listed its shares, with the stock symbol “PTR” in the Manila Stock Exchange and the Makati Stock Exchange on January 28, 1987
following BOD approval of the listing on November 5, 1986. Upon the merger of the two exchanges into the PSE in 1992, the Parent Company signed
a listing agreement with PSE for its shares to be listed and traded on the unified exchange also as PTR.
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Amendments to the authorized capital stock
Subsequent to the Parent Company filing its AOI in 1930, the Parent Company made the following amendments on its authorized capital stock:
Year
1939 (a)
1957 (b)
1966
1973
1977
1984
1987

Authorized Capital Stock
P200,000
P12,000,000
P30,000,000
P60,000,000
P100,000,000
P110,000,000
P200,000,000

1989

P360,000,000

1994

P700,000,000 divided into
P500,000,000 common capital and
P200,000,000 preferred capital (c)
P250,000,000 divided into
P50,000,000 common capital and
P200,000,000 preferred capital
P300,000,000 divided into
P100,000,000 common capital and
P200,000,000 preferred capital

2001
2002

2003

2010

(a)
(b)
(c)

P1,300,000,000 divided into
P1,100,000,000 common capital and
P200,000,000 preferred capital
P1,500,000,000 divided into
P1,300,000,000 common capital and
P200,000,000 preferred capital

Composition
2,000 common shares
1,200,000 common shares
3,000,000 common shares
6,000,000 common shares
10,000,000 common shares
11,000,000 common shares
20,000,000 common shares; later divided into
12,000,000 Class “A” common shares and
8,000,000 Class “B” common shares
21,600,000 Class “A” common shares and
14,400,000 Class “B” common shares
32,400,000 Class “A” common shares and
17,600,000 Class “B” common shares;
200,000 preferred shares
32,400,000 Class “A” common shares and
17,600,000 Class “B” common shares;
200,000 preferred shares
62,400,000 Class “A” common shares and
37,600,000 Class “B” common shares
(later declassified into 100,000,000 authorized
common capital); 200,000 preferred shares
1,100,000,000 common shares;
200,000 preferred shares
1,300,000,000 common shares;
200,000 preferred shares

Par Value
P100
P10
P10
P10
P10
P10
P10
P10
P10 - common;
P1,000 - preferred
P1 - common;
P1,000 - preferred
P1 - common;
P1,000 - preferred

P1 - common;
P1,000 - preferred
P1 - common;
P1,000 - preferred

Based on a reconstruction of records, including the AOI, in 1948
Existing shareholders were issued 150 shares with par value of P10 for each share with par value of P100 they already held through a stock
dividend
The creation of the preferred shares of stock was approved by the BOD in its regular meeting on March 18, 1993 and by the shareholders
at the annual shareholders’ meeting on April 30, 1993. It was subsequently approved by the SEC on January 11, 1994.

Track record of subsequent offerings
Below is a summarized discussion of the Parent Company’s track record of registration of securities under the SRC:

Year
2003

Date of SEC
approval
April 24, 2003

2008 November 24, 2008
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)

Type of
offering
Rights with
warrants
offer
Rights offer

Number of
shares offered
499,997,540
99,999,508 (d)
99,999,508 (e)
296,775,950

Par
value
P1.00

Offer
price
P2.00(f)

P1.00
P1.00

P2.00(f)
P2.10(f)

Warrants
Underlying common shares
Exercise price
After exercise of warrants in 2004
After exercise of warrants in 2005

Number of shareholders
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company has 391 and 394 shareholders, respectively.
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Number of shares after offering
Issued and
Authorized
outstanding
599,997,048
629,997,412 (g)
1,100,000,000
652,477,229 (h)
1,100,000,000
989,253,179

14. Cost of Sales and Services
This account consists of:

Materials (Note 6)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 8 and 9)
Direct labor
Rent (Note 19)
Personnel expenses and outside services
Specialty contractor (Note 18c)
Repairs and maintenance
Toll packing
Gas and utilities
Others

2014
P4,936,324,246
609,684,913
336,001,481
210,818,274
195,830,681
154,000,000
83,072,129
60,580,906
48,936,215
54,736,796
P6,689,985,641

2013
P3,757,228,091
631,381,319
215,093,153
27,161,899
125,246,640
–
70,261,414
151,041,263
96,173,252
91,717,233
P5,165,304,264

2012
P2,259,410,722
632,817,015
43,853,181
–
110,187,974
–
38,450,236
33,628,398
59,092,067
44,419,402
P3,221,858,995

“Others” consist of personnel development expenses, insurance and association and membership fees, among others.
“Specialty contractor fee” pertains to the manufacturing and bottling services of Mega Asia in all plants except Antipolo for a fixed monthly service fee
of P14.00 million starting February 1, 2014.
15. Selling and Marketing Expenses
This account consists of:

Advertising
Outside services
Rent (Note 19)
Salaries, wages and benefits
Gas, oil and fuel
Depreciation (Note 8)
Repairs and utilities
Hauling and loading
Travel, transportation and entertainment
Promotions and commissions
Provision for inventory obsolescence and condemnation (Note 6)
Taxes, licenses and registrations
Others

2014
P236,688,444
123,991,113
110,208,524
101,295,950
82,866,005
69,938,805
40,917,803
38,679,340
36,017,340
34,666,170
9,302,844
3,628,348
56,847,856
P945,048,542

2013
P151,772,074
65,142,435
1,169,863
93,865,683
60,638,972
44,548,025
30,693,772
49,220,597
24,889,814
31,852,950
–
13,734,483
20,744,514
P588,273,182

2012
P193,784,796
29,922,289
–
71,071,920
–
40,180,093
15,772,031
79,747,453
12,216,177
51,459,200
–
14,181,703
76,960,765
P585,296,427

“Others” consist of toll and market fees, freight and handling fees and entertainment and recreation expenses, among others.
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16. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:
2014
P158,128,216
55,230,361
48,381,001
28,105,460
17,860,209
17,779,953
9,248,989
8,817,698
14,350,526
P357,902,413

Salaries, wages and benefits
Contracted services and professional fees
Management fee (see Note 18a)
Taxes, licenses and registrations
Repairs and utilities
Meetings and entertainment
Supplies and transportation
Depreciation (see Note 8)
Others

2013
P161,852,050
47,431,557
35,269,110
16,272,936
17,114,885
13,230,991
11,737,360
11,897,268
12,276,034
P327,082,191

2012
P95,954,787
25,939,020
26,723,126
14,385,072
22,449,865
362,739
27,411,162
17,741,331
45,530,084
P276,497,186

2014
P28,539,513
(9,736,528)
–
–
996,336
P19,799,321

2013
P925,127
–
(4,899,248)
(4,409,591)
(227,395)
(P8,611,107)

“Others” consist of donations, rentals and miscellaneous expenses, among others.
17. Others - net
This account consists of:

Sale of scrap materials and cullets
Write-off of CWTs
Write-off of input VAT
Write-off of uncollectible receivables
Others
Sale of scrap materials and cullets is presented net of selling costs.
18. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operational decisions. Parties are considered to be related if they are subject to common control and common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions with related parties are based on terms agreed to by the
parties.
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Outstanding balances of transactions with related parties are set out below:

Category

Due from
related
parties
(Note 5)

Trade
and other
payables

Due to
related
parties
(Note 11)

Terms

Conditions

Interest
Income

Costs

Trade and other
receivables

P–

P–

P44,349,250

P–

P4,035,960

P–

P8,308,931

Non-interest

No impairment;

–

7,196,250

–

–

59,968,750

–

–

bearing

Unsecured

–

–

15,359,905

–

–

–

22,679,013

Non-interest

Unsecured

Year

Revenues

ARC Holdings, Inc.

2014

(ARCHI; Note 18a)

2013

Asiawide (Note 18b)

2014

Entities under common control:

bearing
Mega Asia (Note 18c)

2014

–

–

315,138,912

–

57,939,846

–

166,548,279

Non-interest

No impairment;

bearing

Unsecured
Unsecured

Bev-pack Inc.

2014

–

–

468,982,669

–

–

193,118,297

–

Non-interest

(Bev-pack, Note 18d)

2013

–

–

203,805,908

–

–

165,510,605

–

bearing

Zest-O (Note 18e)

Solmac Marketing Inc.

2014

67,864,351

–

106,671,532

175,560,028

47,558,126

–

130,417,151

Non-interest

2013

59,204,784

–

–

100,773,503

–

–

74,999,800

bearing

2014

–

–

8,897,029

–

–

928,491

–

Non-interest

(Solmac; Note 18f)
SMI Development Corporation

No impairment;

Unsecured

bearing
2014

–

–

6,105,352

–

–

3,697,280

–

Non-interest

Unsecured

bearing
(SMI; Note 18g)

2014

5,528,354

–

36,641,738

–

3,415,827

–

9,565,195

Non-interest

No impairment;

AKPI (Note 18h)

2013

7,587,972

–

25,963,393

–

–

10,158,003

–

bearing

Unsecured

Semexco Marketing, Inc.

2013

–

–

13,704,884

–

–

7,650,455

–

Non-interest

Unsecured

bearing
Stockholder:
Individual (Note 18j)

2014

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Non-interest

Unsecured

bearing

a.

2013

–

–

–

2014

P73,392,705

P–

P1,002,146,387

2013

P66,792,756

P7,196,250

–

–

–

69,576,259

P175,560,028 P112,949,759 P197,744,068 P337,518,569

P243,474,185 P100,773,503

P59,968,750 P183,319,063 P144,576,059

On February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments entered into a management agreement with ARCHI. The agreement is for ARC Refreshments to pay
ARCHI a monthly amount equivalent to P4.03 million as management fees payable every 5th of the month.
Starting January 1, 2010 to January 31, 2014, Asiawide entered into a management contract with ARCHI at a rate of 0.50% of sales of Asiawide.
Asiawide recognized management fee amounting to P3.66 million for the one-month period ending January 31, 2014.
On December 17, 2009, Asiawide extended a loan to ARC Holdings amounting toP69.97 million. The amount was to finance investment of
ARC Holdings in AKPI. The loan agreement specifies a 12% interest rate per annum on the outstanding balance. Interest income related to this
amounted to P7.20 million in 2013.
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b.

As mentioned in Note 1, ARC Refreshments entered into an APA with Asiawide. The agreement is effective at the close of business hours of
January 31, 2014. The total consideration amounted to P1.0 billion and payment was made last July 13, 2014.
Following the APA, ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Asiawide for the use of its land and building situated in Sitio Puting
Bato, Antipolo Rizal. The amount of rental expense is P1.40 million per month.

c.

ARC Refreshments entered into an APA with Mega Asia as mentioned in Note 1. The agreement is effective at the close of business hours of
January 31, 2014. The total consideration amounted to P0.57 billion and payment was made last July 13, 2014.
Following the APA, ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreements with Mega Asia for the use of its land and building situated in Pampanga,
Pangasinan, Isabela, Davao and Misamis Oriental. Monthly rental expense is P14.65 million.
Mega Asia also provides manpower services in all plants except Antipolo. Under the agreement, ARC Refreshments shall pay a fixed monthly
service fee of P14.00 million starting February 1, 2014 (see Note 13).

d.

Bev-pack is a supplier of caps for ARC Refreshments’ production of 800 ml bottled softdrinks. Total purchases made in amounted to
P468.98 million and P203.81 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively, and outstanding payable as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
P193.12 million and P165.51 million, respectively. Purchases are covered with approved Purchase Order form based on the projected requirements
of production.

e.

On February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments entered into various lease agreements with Zest-O for the use of its land and building facilities, and
machinery and equipment in Kaybiga, Novaliches and Canlubang, Laguna. The contract for the land and building is for a period of three years,
renewable after every three years, while the contract for the machinery and equipment ranges from two to four years depending on the type
of machinery and equipment. Monthly rental expense for the land and building and machinery and equipment amounted to P4.70 million and
P5.01 million, respectively.
Also on February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O for the lease of bottling equipment located in Kaybiga,
Novaliches, Quezon City and 108 Progressive Avenue Carmelrey Industrial Park, Brgy. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna. The lease ranges from two to
four years renewable by mutual consent. Total monthly rental expense for the lease of bottling equipment in Kaybiga and Canlubang amounted
to P2.49 million and P2.52 million, respectively. On February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments also purchased various machinery and equipment
from Zest-O. The total amount of consideration is P53.28 million. Total outstanding payable as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
P130.42 million and P75.00 million, respectively.
Zest-O is also a distributor of ARC Refreshments’ one-way products polyethylene terephthalate bottles (PET) and cans in supermarkets and
convenience stores. Zest-O enjoys a maximum discount of 17% of Gross Wholesale Price. Total outstanding receivables as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 amounted to P175.56 million and P47.56 million, respectively.
Zest-O also advanced Mega Asia’s payment for its investment to MCI in 2013 amounting to P75.00 million (see Note 10).

f.

Solmac is the owner of the building where the corporate office of the Group is located. The Group occupies 12 units with an average rental of
P260.25 per sq. meter. Total rental amounted to P4.13 million in 2014.
Solmac is also the supplier of labels and cartons used in one-way products as well as some marketing materials. Total purchases for 2014 amounted
to P4.8 million.

g.

On February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with SMI for the use of its 16,398 sq. meter land in Antipolo.
Monthly rental expense is P0.56 million.

h.

In 2013, Mega Asia contracted to be the toll manufacturer of AKPI for its carbonated beverages. Total tolling revenue earned by Mega Asia
amounted to P0.53 million for the one-month period ending January 31, 2014 and P7.59 million in 2013.
Following the APA with Mega Asia, ARC Refreshments was contracted to be the toll manufacturer of AKPI for its carbonated beverages starting
February 1, 2014. Under the terms of the agreement, AKPI shall pay a variable fee per case of finished goods produced and delivered. Total tolling
revenue earned in 2014 amounted to P5.00 million.

i.

In 2013, one of the stockholders of Mega Asia advanced P69.58 million for the purchase of various fixed assets.

j.

The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

Salaries and wages
Allowances and benefits
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2013
P15,121,000
1,320,000
P16,441,000

2012
P12,237,582
260,237
P12,497,819

19.

Lease Agreements
Lease Agreements with Mega Asia
a.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Mega Asia, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land and building located in
Pampanga. The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017. Refundable rental deposit amounted to
P28.62 million as of December 31, 2014 (see Note 7). Rent expense amounted to P25.08 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18c).

b.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Mega Asia, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land and building located in
Cagayan de Oro. The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017. Refundable rental deposit amounted
to P101.50 million as of December 31, 2014 (see Note 7). Rent expense amounted to P30.43 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18c).

c.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Mega Asia, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land and building located in
Pangasinan. The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017. Refundable rental deposit amounted to
P72.05 million as of December 31, 2014 (see Note 7). Rent expense amounted to P42.75 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18c).

d.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Mega Asia, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land and building located in Isabela.
The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017. Refundable rental deposit amounted to
P43.60 million as of December 31, 2014 (see Note 7). Rent expense amounted to P29.02 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18c).

e.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Mega Asia, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land and building located in Davao.
The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017. Refundable rental deposit amounted to
P104.58 million as of December 31, 2014 (see Note 7). Rent expense amounted to P33.86 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18c).

The above lease agreements require ARC Refreshments to pay security deposits, which are included under “Security deposits” account in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Refundable deposits amounted to P350.35 million as of December 31, 2014 (see Note 7).
Lease Agreements with Zest-O
a.

On February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O, a related party, covering a piece of land and building
on which the manufacturing plant and administrative office of ARC Refreshments are located in Kaybiga, Novaliches, Quezon City. The lease
is for a period of three (3) years up to 2017, renewable for mutual consent. Rent expense amounted to P25.54 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 (see Note 18e).

b.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O, a related party, for a lease of bottling equipment in Kaybiga, Novaliches,
Quezon City. The lease shall be for four (4) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017, renewable by mutual consent.
Rent expense amounted to P15.91 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 (see Note 18e).

c.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O, a related party, for a lease of bottling equipment in Kaybiga, Novaliches,
Quezon City. The lease shall be for two (2) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017, renewable by mutual consent.
Rent expense amounted to P11.43 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 (see Note 18e).

d.

On February 1, 2014, ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O, a related party, covering a piece of land and building on
which the manufacturing plant and administrative office of ARC Refreshments are located in 108 Progressive Avenue Carmelray Industrial Park,
Brgy. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna. The lease is for a period of three (3) years up to 2017, renewable by mutual consent. Rent expense amounted
to P26.05 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 (see Note 18e).

e.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O, a related party, for a lease of bottling equipment in 108 Progressive Avenue
Carmelrey Industrial Park, Brgy. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna. The lease shall be for four (4) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to
January 31, 2017, renewable by mutual consent. Rent expense amounted to P17.72 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18e).

f.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Zest-O, a related party, for a lease of bottling equipment in 108 Progressive Avenue
Carmelray Industrial Park, Brgy. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna. The lease shall be for two (2) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to
January 31, 2017, renewable by mutual consent. Rent expense amounted to P10.01 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
(see Note 18e).

R E F R E S H I N G G ROW T H | A N N UA L R E P O RT 2 0 1 4

37

Others
a.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with Asiawide, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land and building located at Km. 27 Sitio
Puting Bato, Inarawan, Antipolo City. The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017, renewable by
mutual consent. Rent expense amounted to P15.36 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 (see Note 18b).

b.

ARC Refreshments entered into a lease agreement with SMI Development Corporation, a related party, for a lease of a piece of land at Km. 27
Sitio Puting Bato, Inarawan, Antipolo City. The lease shall be for three (3) years commencing from February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2017, renewable
by mutual consent. Rent expense amounted to P6.11 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 (see Note 18g).

Future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases as of December 31, 2014 are as follows:
Within one year
After one year but not more than three years

P1,385,962,303
1,561,171,904

20. Retirement Benefits
The Group has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all of its regular employees. The defined retirement
benefit obligation is determined using the projected unit credit method. There was no plan termination, curtailment or settlement for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013.
The net retirement benefits costs recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
2014
P29,057,014
2,957,953
P32,014,967

Service cost
Net interest cost
Retirement benefits costs

2013
P19,041,398
3,076,121
P22,117,519

Retirement benefits liability recognized in the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
2014
P167,549,022
(77,961,954)
P89,587,068

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Balances at end of year

2013
P111,113,617
(55,465,919)
P55,647,698

The present value of defined benefit retirement obligation as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Balances at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Remeasurement (gains) losses:
Actuarial loss from experience adjustments
Actuarial loss (gain) from changes in financial assumptions
Balances at end of year
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2014
P111,113,617
29,057,014
5,906,244
(5,264,312)

2013
P84,988,288
19,041,398
4,777,956
–

21,380,082
5,356,377
P167,549,022

5,824,380
(3,518,405)
P111,113,617

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Balances at beginning of year
Interest income
Benefits paid
Contributions
Actuarial gain (loss) from experience adjustments
Balances at end of year
Actual return on plan assets

2014
P55,465,919
2,948,291
(5,264,312)
24,752,906
59,150
P77,961,954

2013
P30,271,524
1,701,835
–
24,445,887
(953,327)
P55,465,919

P3,007,441

P748,508

The assets of the Plan are being held by a trustee bank. The investing decisions of the Plan are made by certain officers of ARC Refreshments duly
authorized by the BOD.
The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the assets of the Plan:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Long-term investments

Carrying Amounts
2014
2013
P50,557,320
P26,147,722
4,110,695
4,397,730
23,293,939
24,920,467
P77,961,954
P55,465,919

Fair Values
2014
P50,557,320
4,110,695
23,293,939
P77,961,954

2013
P26,147,722
4,397,730
24,920,467
P55,465,919

The Plan’s assets and investments consist of the following:
•
Cash and cash equivalents, which includes regular savings and time deposits.
•
Short-term investments which includes time deposits and special deposit accounts with a maturity of more than three months but not more than
one year from date of acquisition.
•
Long-term investments which is primarily composed of government securities and some corporate bonds.
The Company expects to contribute P29.0 million to the defined benefit plan in 2015.
The principal assumptions used to determine the accrued retirement fund as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Expected average future service years of employees

2014
4.49%
7.00%
26.37

2013
5.32%
7.00%
26.26

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation
as of December 31, 2014, assuming all other assumptions were held constant:
Increase
(Decrease)
+1%
-1%
+1%
-1%

Discount rates
Future salary increase rate

Amount
(P31,204,000)
40,191,000
37,630,000
(30,101,000)

The average duration of the accrued retirement fund at the end of the reporting date is 26 years.
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Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of December 31, 2014:
More than 1 year to 5 years
More than 5 years to 10 years

P2,362,000
29,286,000

21. Income Taxes
The current provision for income tax in 2014 and 2013 represents the regular corporate income tax.
The components of the Group’s net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets
Retirement benefits liability
Allowance for inventory obsolescence and condemnation
(Forward)
Straight-line adjustment on rent
Unamortized past service costs
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
Deferred tax liability on unrealized foreign exchange gain
Deferred income tax asset on retirement benefits liability
recognized directly in equity
Net deferred income tax asset (liability)

2014

2013

P18,872,928
8,839,096

P544,852
–

2014
P3,398,769
1,297,077
650,999
–
33,058,869
371,478
32,687,391
8,003,193

2013
P–
–
–
885,613
1,430,465
1,508,749
(78,284)
–

P40,690,584

(P78,284)

In 2013, deferred income tax assets of on certain deductible temporary difference, unused tax credits and unused tax losses have not been recognized
as management believes that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilized.
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group did not recognize the deferred income tax asset pertaining to NOLCO amounting to P6,284,462 and
P973,133, respectively, since the Group believes that there will be no sufficient future taxable profit available to allow all or part of such deferred tax
assets to be utilized.
As of December 31, 2014, the Group has NOLCO that can be claimed as deductions from future taxable income as follows:
Year Incurred
2013
2014

Year of Expiration
2016
2017

Amount
P3,243,776
17,704,431
P20,948,207

The following are the movements in NOLCO:
2014
P3,243,776
17,704,431
P20,948,207

Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Balances at end of year
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2013
P−
3,243,776
P3,243,776

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed based on the statutory income tax rate to the provision for income tax in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Income tax at statutory tax rate
Reductions in income tax resulting from:
Nondeductible expenses
Changes in previously unrecognized deferred income taxes
Movement in deferred tax from net asset acquisition
Interest income already subjected to final tax
Nontaxable income

2014
P725,794,238

2013
P293,526,914

2012
P54,297,133

7,973,863
5,311,329
(32,687,391)
(10,653,223)
(2,057,075)
P693,681,741

598,867
2,679,964
−
(4,266,420)
(899)
P292,538,426

−
−
−
−
−
P54,297,133

22. Financial Risk Management and Capital Management
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due to and from related parties, short-term
loans payable, trade and other payables excluding statutory payables. The main purpose of the Group’s dealings in financial instruments is to fund its
operations, capital expenditures and financing activities.
The risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk.
The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks, to set appropriate transaction limits and controls and to monitor
and assess risks and compliance to internal control, identify and manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks, to set appropriate transaction limits and
controls and to monitor and assess risks and compliance to internal control policies. Risk management policies and structure are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.
Management addresses the risks faced by the Group in the preparation of its annual operating budget. Mitigating strategies and procedures are also
devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as not to affect the Group’s operations and forecasted results. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s credit
risk exposure arises principally from the possibility that the counterparties may fail to fulfill their agreed obligations. To manage such risk, the Group
monitors its receivables on an ongoing basis. The objective is to reduce the risk of loss through default of counterparties.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of receivables. The main components
of this allowance are specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups
of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective allowance is determined based on historical data of
payment statistics for similar financial assets.
With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and receivables, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arises from a possible default of the counterparties with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents*
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables
Security deposits
Total credit risk exposure
*Excluding cash on hand

2014
Past Due But Not
Neither Past Due Nor impaired
High Grade Standard Grade
Impaired
P1,345,112,861
P–
P–
20,000,000
–
–
–
375,742,499
–
–
350,349,197
–
P1,365,112,861
P726,091,696
P–
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Impaired
P–
–
2,169,999
–
P2,169,999

Total
P1,345,112,861
20,000,000
377,912,498
350,349,197
P2,093,374,556
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Cash and cash equivalents*
Trade and other receivables
Total credit risk exposure
*Excluding cash on hand

2013
Past Due But Not
Neither Past Due Nor impaired
High Grade Standard Grade
Impaired
P4,590,969,560
P–
P–
3,902,521
228,173,475
–
P4,594,872,081
P228,173,475
P–

Impaired
P–
11,569,042
P11,569,042

Total
P4,590,969,560
243,645,038
P4,834,614,598

The Group has assessed the credit quality of the following financial assets:
1.
2.
3.

Cash and cash equivalents are assessed as high grade since these are deposited with reputable banks.
Trade and other receivables, which pertain mainly to receivables from related parties, officers and employees and others, were assessed as standard
grade since there were no history of default on the outstanding receivables as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. These were assessed based on past
collection experience and the debtors’ ability to pay the receivables.
Security deposits are considered as standard grade financial assets as these are settled at end of contract period even without an effort from the
Group to follow them up.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to cover
daily operational and working capital requirements. Management closely monitors the Group’s future and contingent obligations and sets up required
cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal policies.
The table below shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting
agreements:
Due and
Demandable
Trade and other payables*
P2,659,641,083
Short-term loans payable
–
P2,659,641,083
*Excluding statutory payables amounting to P5,316,565

Within 6
Months
P–
103,291,516
P103,291,516

Due and
Demandable
Trade and other payables*
P1,996,387,908
Due to related parties
–
Short-term loans payable
–
Long-term loans payable
–
P1,996,387,908
*Excluding statutory payables amounting to P10,630,896

Within 6
Months
P–
–
296,114,471
–
P296,114,471

2014
6 to 12
Months
P–
–
P–

Over 1 year
P–
–
P–

Total
P2,659,641,083
103,291,516
P2,762,932,599

Over 1 year
P–
144,576,059
–
50,000,000
P194,576,059

Total
P2,756,865,002
144,576,059
456,102,869
50,000,000
P3,407,543,930

2013

6 to 12
Months
P760,477,094
–
159,988,398
–
P920,465,492

The Company has financial assets of P2,093.37 million and P4,834.61 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively that may be used to settle
its financial liabilities.
Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group uses the Peso (P) as its functional
currency and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange movements, primarily on the US Dollar ($). The Group follows a policy to manage this risk by
closely monitoring its cash flow position and by providing forecast on its exposures in non-peso currency.
The balances of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency translated in Philippine peso, as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, are as follows:

42

M AC AY H O L D I N G S , I N C .

Original Currency in $

Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liability:
Accounts payable
Net exposure

2014
Translated in P Original Currency in €

Translated in P

$281,065

P12,562,281

€90,418

P4,913,314

(2,852,915)
($2,571,850)

(127,582,359)
(P115,020,078)

–
€90,418

–
P4,913,314

2013
Original Currency in $

Translated in P

$128,766

P5,716,910

(2,806,570)
(6,669,996)
(9,476,566)
($9,347,800)

(124,597,675)
(296,114,471)
(420,712,146)
(P414,995,236)

Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable
Short-term payables
Net exposure

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the exchange rate of the Philippine peso to the USD is P44.72 and P44.40, respectively, while the exchange rate for
EUR as of December 31, 2014 is P54.34.
The table below demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in P to $ and P to Euro (€) exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax. There is no other impact on the Group’s equity other than those affecting the statement of
comprehensive income.

$ strengthens by 5%
Increase (decrease) in income before
income tax and equity
2014
2013

(P5,751,004)
(20,749,762)

Change in exchange rate
$ weakens by 5%
€ strengthens by 5%
P5,751,004
20,749,762

€ weakens by 5%

P245,666
–

(P245,666)
–

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced liquidation or sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate.
The following financial assets and liabilities have carrying values that approximate their fair values as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:
Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
Trade and other receivables, Short-term loans payable and Trade and other payables
Similarly, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivable, short-term loans payable and trade and other payables, which are all subject to normal
trade terms, approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.
Security deposits
The fair values of security deposits amounted to P325.98 million and are based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the applicable market
interest rate. Discount rate is at 3.57% that are specific to the tenor of the security deposits’ cash flows as of December 31, 2014.
Fair Value Hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
•
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
•
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
•
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
The Group uses Level 2 hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the security deposits.
During 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurement.
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Capital Management
The Group maintains a capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to increase the
value of shareholders’ investment. The Group sets strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile and resourceful financial management and
capital structure upon commencement of its operations.
The BOD has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the Group’s
external environment and the risks underlying the Group’s business operations and industry. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
The following table summarizes what the Group considers as its total capital as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:
2014
P1,068,393,223
1,153,568,289
1,597,172,677
P3,819,134,189

Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

2013
P1,068,393,223
1,153,568,289
1,194,994,559
P3,416,956,071

23. Notes to Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
The principal noncash transactions relate to the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Assets and liabilities that were not part of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed by the Group in January 2014 (see Notes 1 and 2) were
distributed to previous owners of Asiawide and Mega Asia.
Application of creditable withholding taxes amounting to P3.79 million and P4.43 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Creditable withholding
tax is included in “Other current assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Reclassification of inventory to other current assets amounting to P0.51 million in 2013.
Reclassification of inventory to property, plant and equipment amounting P0.66 million in 2013.
Reclassification of other noncurrent assets to other current assets amounting to P1.33 million in 2013.

“Cash and cash equivalents” of the Parent Company upon change of its ownership on October 25, 2013 amounting to P3.65 billion is presented
separately in the 2013 consolidated statement of cash flow.
24.

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted EPS is computed as follows:

Net income
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted EPS

2014
P1,725,632,387
1,068,393,223
P1.6152

2013
P685,884,619
1,068,393,223
P0.6420

2012
P126,693,312
1,068,393,223
P0.1185

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, there are no potential ordinary shares that have a dilutive effect on the basic EPS of the Parent Company.
25

Segment Information
The Group is organized into only one operating division, manufacturing and trading of beverages, which is its primary activity. The Group operates
in nine geographical areas namely Antipolo, Kaybiga, Canlubang, Pangasinan, Pampanga, Isabela, Cebu, Davao and Cagayan De Oro, where it derives its
revenues. For management purposes, the Group considers the entire business as one segment. Management monitors the operating results of the
business for purposes of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Net sales, net income, total assets and total liabilities of ARC Refreshments, Asiawide and Mega Asia combined as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are as follows:
2014
P10,352,147,129
1,729,168,057
6,858,253,354
3,139,707,226

Net Sales - external customers
Net Income
Total assets
Total liabilities

The Group has no sales from transactions with a single external customer accounting for more than 10% or more of the net sales.
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2013
P7,054,669,366
679,313,818
5,483,467,731
3,886,593,588

